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JOHN C. BROOKS, COMMISSIONER g
OF LABOR OF NORTH CAROLINA, )
) 89 DOL 0009
Complainant, )
) 6-14-89
V. )
) Review 10-18-89
ALEX SHUGART, )
) 14
)
Respondent. )
)

APPEARANCES Complainant: Richard A. Love
Assistant Attorney General

Respondent: Alex Shugart

BEFORE Senior Administrative Law Judge: Beecher R. Gray

This case was heard before Beecher R. Gray, administrative law
judge, on March 17, 1989 in Yadkinville, North Carolina. This hearing
was expedited upon joint request of the parties. Both parties waived the
15 day notice of hearing, At the conclusion of the hearing the parties
asked and received additional time to file proposed findings of fact and
written arguments under G.S. 150B-34(b). Respondent filed a proposed
recommended decision and memorandum of law on May 19, 1989.

ISSUES

1. Whether [Respondent] failed to provide an adequate and
convenient water supply approved by the appropriate health authority
for drinking, cooking, bathing, and laundry purposes at a house owned
by [Respondent] and inhabited by migrant workers on State Road
1374 in Yadkin County on September 7, 1988.

2. Whether [Respondent] failed to maintain fly and rodent-tight
garbage containers because the containers present did not have tight
fitting lids at a house owned by [Respondent ] and inhabited by migrant
workers on State Road 1374 in Yadkin County on September 7, 1988.
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FINDINGS OF FACT

1. [Complainant]is an agency of the State of North Cardlina with
responsibility and authority for insuring compliance with the federal
occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA) under the provisions of
North Carolina General Statute Chapter 95, Article 16, the Occupa-
tional Safety and Health Act of North Carolina (OSHANC).

2. [Respondent] is in the business of farming in Yadkin County
North Carolina. His address is P. O, Box 188 Yadkinville, North
Carolina 27055.

3. [Respondent] grows tobacco on land he owns or controls in
Yadkin County. He maintains two houses on land he farms in which
agricultural workers live during the tobacco season. One house is
located on State Road 1374 and one on State Road 1370.

4. On August 16, 1988 Safety Compliance Officer Kathleen Ragan,
an agent of [Complainant], entered [Respondent’s] farm land and
conducted an inspection of the two houses used by the agricultural
workers for compliance with OSHA standards.

5. On August 16, 1988 Officer Ragan observed that there were
three (3) workers living in the house on State Road 1374 and five (5)
workers in the house on State Road 1370.

6. At the house on State Road 1374, Officer Ragan found that
[Respondent| had a hand-dug well as a source of water supply and
could not furnish evidence of its approval as a safe water supply by the
Yadkin County Health Department. The Yadkin County Health
Department had taken a water sample on May 20, 1988 for bacteriologi-
cal analysis but had refused to release the results because an unlined
hand dug well is nonconforming to State health requirements for
agricultural worker water supply.

7. Officer Ragan also observed that [Respondent] had a 55 gallon
drum for a waste container for the house on State Road 1374, On
August 16, 1988 the drum was located about 25 feet from the house and
its lid was lying on the ground a few feet away. [Respondent] had
previously furnished the 55 gallon drum and lid for the workers and had
Iepeatedly instructed them to keep the lid in place on top of the drum.

8. Animproper water supply may cause serious illnesses such as
typhoid fever and infectious hepatitis,
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13. The proposed penalties were calculated in accordance with the
OSHA Field Operations Manual. [Respondent] was given 40 percent
credit for size, 30 percent credit for good faith and 10 percent credit
for history.

14. The remaining alleged violations carried no proposed civil
penalties and are not contested in this proceeding.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Based upon the foregoing findings of fact, I make the following
conclusions of law, .

1. The parties are properly before the Office of Administrative
Hearings.

2. Amigrant agricultural worker is defined in 29 U.S.C. 1802 as an
individual who is employed in agricultural employment of a seasonal
or other temporary nature, and who is required to be absent overnight
from his permanent place of residence.

3. At the time of Officer Ragan’s inspection of August 16, 1988 the
three agricultural workers employed by [Respondent ] and residing in
his house on State Road 1374 in Yadkin County were migrant
agricultural workers for purposes of OSHA and OSHANC.

4. On August 16, 1988 [Respondent] was not in violation of 29 CFR
1910.142(h)(1) requiring garbage containers with fly and rodent-tight
lids because he had in fact furnished such equipment for the workers
and had instructed them in keeping the lid on the can. [Respondent] is
not required to maintain a 24 hour watch over such facilities to ensure
proper use.

5. On August 16, 1988 [Respondent] was in violation of 29 CFR
1910.142(c)(1) in that he failed to provide an adequate and convenient
water supply approved by the appropriate health authority for
drinking, cooking, bathing, and laundry purposes for the three migrant
workersin [Respondent’s] house on State Road 1374 in Yadkin County.

6. [Complainant] has the authority under North Carolina General
Statute 95-138 (1985) to impose a civil penalty against [Respondent |
for the water supply violation.

645



RECOMMENDED DECISION

Based upon the foregoing findings of fact and conclusions of law, it

is hereby recommended that the Safety and Health Review Board
affirm the citation against [Respondent} for the water supply
violation but that the Board suspend the assessment of a civil penalty
in the amount of $320 for a period of six months on the condition that
[Respondent] spend alike sum on upgrading the hand-dug well at the
house on State Road 1374 in Yadkin County or on obtaining a new,
approved means of water su pply. It is recommended that the citation
assessing a civil penalty of $80 against [Respondent ] for not maintain-
ing fly and rodent-tight garbage containers be reversed.

NOTICE

The agency that will make the fin al decision in this contested case
is the Safety and Health Review Board.

This the 12th day of J une, 1989.

Beecher R. Gray
Senior Administrative Law J udge

FINAL DECISION

APPEARANCES Complainant: No appearance

Respondent: No appearance

" BEFORE Review Board: Kenneth K. Kiser, Chairman;

Hugh M. Wilson, Member

THIS CAUSE COMING ON TO BE HEARD the 22nd day of
September, 1989 in Room 700, Wake County Courthouse, Raleigh,
North Carolina before Kenneth K. Kiser, Chairman, and Hugh M.
Wilson, Member, constituting the North Carolina Occupational Safety
and Health Review Board.
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FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

The Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law made by the
Administrative Law Judge are sufficiently supported by the admissible
evidence and the Review Board hereby adopts the Findings of Fact
and Conclusions of Law in the Administrative Law Judge's Recom-

mended Decision.

ORDER

The Review Board hereby adopts t
Recommended Decision affirming citation Number One, Item 1
against [Respondent] and the six month suspension of the penalty
conditioned on [Respondent’s] spending the penalty amount of $320
on upgrading the well in question or obtaining an approved means of
water supply. The Review Board also adopts the reversal of citation
Number Two, Item 2, thereby dismissing that citation.

he Administrative Law Judge's

This the 18th day of October, 1989.

Kenneth K. Kiser, Chairman

Hugh M. Wilson, Member



